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Overview

• Funding & Tender portal

• Terminology: Concepts and examples

• Quality of proposal

• Applicant’s Checklist
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Funding & Tender portal
Direct link to call page

Direct link to user guide
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https://ec.europa.eu/info/funding-tenders/opportunities/portal/screen/opportunities/topic-search;callCode=CEF-E-2022-CBRENEW;freeTextSearchKeyword=;matchWholeText=true;typeCodes=1;statusCodes=31094501,31094502,31094503;programmePeriod=null;programCcm2Id=43251567;programDivisionCode=null;focusAreaCode=null;destination=null;mission=null;geographicalZonesCode=null;programmeDivisionProspect=null;startDateLte=null;startDateGte=null;crossCuttingPriorityCode=null;cpvCode=null;performanceOfDelivery=null;sortQuery=sortStatus;orderBy=asc;onlyTenders=false;topicListKey=callTopicSearchTableState
https://webgate.ec.europa.eu/funding-tenders-opportunities/display/OM/Online+Manual


• Project: The term ‘project’ used in the call text, application form and other 
documents is synonymous to the term ‘action’ used in the CEF Regulation 
(see definition article 2)

• Make sure to always clearly state whether you are referring to your proposed action 
or the envisaged CB RES project in your application.

• Work Package: a Work Package (WP) is a major subdivision of the 
project

• Ex: Project Management, Preparation of Memorandum of Understanding, Conceptual 
design, Preparation of CBA

• WPs can run in parallel and/or be sequential 

Terminology (I)
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Task: subdivision of WPs
• Ex: coordination meetings, 

project monitoring,  
Meetings with MS 
authorities, drafting of 
cooperation agreement, 
calculation of cost of 
generation of energy.

• Estimate percentage of 
subcontracting for each 
task.

• Do not define sub-tasks.

Terminology (II)
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• Milestone: major control points in the project that help to chart progress
• Ex: publication of a tender, signature of contract, start of study, approval of CBA by 

Beneficiary

• Deliverable: project output (do not need to be linked to Milestone)
• Ex: approved CBA, signed Letter of Intent by MS, signed cooperation agreement

Terminology (III)
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1. Simple language (avoid jargon)

2. Information easy to find

It is your responsibility as applicant to demonstrate how your proposal 
addresses the award criteria as indicated in the call text. The evaluation is 
based on the content provided in the application form. No assumptions or 
requests for additional information will be made. 

3. Mandatory annexes

4. Relevant maps, graphs etc. (voluntary annexes)

Quality of proposal (I)
What is the reader looking for?
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Quality of proposal (II)
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What is the project about?
E.g.: Engineering studies to acquire data needed 
for the FEED stage
Proposal shall specify the regulatory framework 
applicable on the territory on which the project will be 
implemented.

What are the technical parameters?
Eg: On site collection of X, Y and Z data; 
construction of 1 biomass plant with a capacity of X 
MW; etc

Who will carry out the project?
Eg: BEN 1 will carry out the study; the construction 
of the windmills will be carried out by BEN 2 via 
subcontracting; etc
Subcontracting per WP (public procurement 
aspects) are the following:…

How and when will the project's objectives be reached?
 WPs, Tasks, Milestones, Deliverables

Why are you proposing this action? What are the 
expected results of the project?
 Fully functioning RES installation with X MW 

capacity; approval of permitting documents; etc.

Scope of project



What

• What are the objectives of the WP? 
 E.g.: preparing the documentation for the 

EIA

• Clear WP name matching its 
description. 
 E.g.: preparation of the EIA

Tasks, Deliverables and 
Milestones
• What are the tasks in the WP?
 data collection, drafting of legal documents; 

What are the deliverables? 
 Eg: set of EIA documents ready for 

signature; report of completion of 
construction works

• What are the Milestones?
 Eg: Subcontractor selected; RES installation 

commissioning

Quality of proposal (III)
Work Packages
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3 Rules of thumb
1. Each work package should have at least 2 milestones START → END.

2. Work packages lasting >1 year, ideally at least one milestone every 12 

months.

3. Means of verification should be reliable and realistic.
 Ex: Publication of the notice of the tender in the OJEU, Contractor's progress report 

approved

Quality of proposal (IV) - Milestones  
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Each work package 
should have 
at least 2 milestones 
START → END.

Work package number 1
Work package name Project Management
Implementing applicant(s) X
Work package description Y
Indicative start date 31/03/2022 START
Indicative end date 31/12/2022 END
Verifying milestone(s) 1, 2

Quality of proposal (V) - Milestones

Milestone 
No. Milestone name Milestone Description Due date Means of 

verification

1 Kick-off Meeting
The beneficiary kick starts the Action with 
a first meeting of the project team.

31/03/2022
START

Minutes of meeting 
by beneficiaries

2
Final coordination
meeting

The beneficiary organises a final meeting 
to wrap up the Action.

31/12/2022
END

Minutes of meeting 
by beneficiaries
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WP lasting >1 year, 
ideally at least one 
milestone every 12 
months.

Work package number 1
Work package name CBA
Implementing applicant(s) X
Work package description Y
Indicative start date 31/03/2022 START
Indicative end date 31/12/2023 END
Verifying milestone(s) 1, 2, 3

Quality of proposal (VI) - Milestones

Milestone 
No. Milestone name Milestone Description Due date Means of 

verification

1
Signature of 
contract

Signature of contract with contractor for
the environmental assessement..

31/06/2023
START Signed contract

2 Progress report
The beneficiary reviews and approves
the progress report by the contractor.

31/03/2022 Approval of report 
by beneficiary

3 Final CBA
The beneficiary reviews and approves 
the CBA.

31/12/2022
END

Approval of CBA 
by beneficiary
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• Information in one part of the application matches the information in 
another part.
 Eg: supporting documents do not contradict the info in application form part B, 

Gantt chart is consistent with the work package dates, milestones, etc.
• Information is presented in a logical way. 

 Eg: administrative procedures are presented in chronological order in the work 
package table, basic study finalised before design study starts.

Quality of proposal (VII)

Make sure that a "common thread" runs through your proposal 
combining objectives, WPs, resources and planning in a way that is 
coherent with achieving the stipulated deliverables
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Quality of proposal (VIII)

• Justification of resources and connection to the project's scope

 Eg. Human resources: feasibility study, 2 staff members (what for? For 

coordination of inputs from contractors or for carrying out complex technical 

analysis).

 Project management costs should not exceed 10% of total project costs

• Level of detail for the risk assessment and the complexity of the project

 Negotiations with MS, no risks identified for potential delays

 Not adequate mitigation measures
14
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Completeness of documents + Annexes

Not needed for public 
bodies, Member State 
organisations, certified 
TSOs and international 
organisations

Checklist studies and works
Application Form Part A — structured data introduced directly on Funding & Tender portal 
Application Form Part B — Word document to be filled in and uploaded as pdf (contains the 
technical description of the project)
Detailed budget table per WP (Excel to be filled in and annexed)

Timetable/Gantt chart

Agreement by the concerned Member States (Letter of support)

Environmental compliance file 
(applicable for works and studies with physical intervention, to be completed in full)
(for studies without physical intervention: please only click the relevant option and upload the 
document)

Annual activity reports

List of previous projects (key projects for the last 4 years)
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Completeness of documents + Annexes

Additional checklist for works

Updated Full CBA

Business plan and other assessments showing that the project is commercially non-
viable (business plan and financial spreadsheet)

Fully-fledged signed cooperation agreement
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• To be completed in full for works and studies with physical intervention 
 Filled in for each applicant and for each Member State where the project is implemented 
 The competent authority in the Member State in question needs to sign the declaration for 

monitoring of NATURA 2000 sites to certify that there is no impact on NATURA 2000 areas

• For studies without physical intervention: only click the relevant option and upload the document
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Environmental compliance file



• Requested in order to verify operational capacity for each applicant/beneficiary
• Should be the regular activity report prepared for the board, shareholders, public etc., not anything 

specific prepared for this proposal. 

Not needed for: Public bodies, Member State organisations, transmission system operators certified under 
Directives 2009/72 or 2009/73 and international organisations
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Letter of support
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• Shall be signed by the ministries of the participating Member States in charge of 
implementing the (future) cooperation agreement for the envisaged CB RES project. 
• the letter of support can be signed by the regional level, provided that it has competence on the 

implementation of the envisaged CB RES project. In that case, provide:
• additional document from the central authority, confirming that the given regional level is 

competent to support/implement the project (does not require any specific format)
• Or: other type of official evidence of regional competence

• “Member State concerned” should be understood as the Member State in the territory of 
which the proposed project is planned to be (or is being) implemented.
• In the case of studies without physical intervention, the proposed project is understood to be 

implemented in the country of the applicant.



Public procurement aspects (I)

• Depending on applicant’s status: to establish whether a proposed 
project is to be implemented in compliance with EU and national law on 
public procurement

• During implementation:
 procurement is verified at payment time
 non-compliance leads to rejection of costs or reduction of support

To keep in mind
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Public procurement aspects (II)

• sound financial management (principles of economy, efficiency and effectiveness)
• best value for money [at least 3 offers] considering the quality of the service, good
• or work proposed, i.e. the best price-quality ratio or on the lowest price
• avoiding conflict of interests

• transparency
• publication of a sufficiently accessible advertisement prior to the award of the contract. According to 

the Commission adequate and commonly used means of publication may include the internet (own 
website, etc.), National Official Journals, national and local means of publication (press, etc.) and the 
OJEU (see also Commission interpretative communication n° 2006/C179/02).

• equal treatment and non-discrimination
• in line with the principles of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, and in particular the 

free movement of goods, freedom of establishment and the freedom to provide services

In any case, compliance with
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Public procurement aspects (III)
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Anti-Fraud Strategy 
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Useful information:
• the OLAF Leaflet
• on- line information on fraud awareness 

https://cinea.ec.europa.eu/system/files/2022-06/OLAF_Report_Fraud_make%20the%20difference_leaflet.pdf
https://ec.europa.eu/anti-fraud/olaf-and-you/report-fraud_en


Applicant’s checklist (I)

• Scope: Does your proposal fit in the scope of the 2022 Work 
Programme and the call for proposals for which you are applying?
• Check that your proposed project indeed addresses the objectives and results 

expected from the call. Consult the call text and the Work Programme. 
Remember, your proposal will be evaluated against the criteria specified for the 
call only based on the information you provide in your application.

• Deadline: Are you on track to submit your proposal by 23 February 
2023 at 17:00.00 (Brussels time)?
• Don't forget to submit your application before the deadline, verify that your 

proposal was correctly submitted - the status of the application must be 
"submitted“.

Don’t leave submission to the last day!25



Applicant’s checklist (II)

• …encode all sections of application form part A directly in the F&T 
platform

• …read through, complete, print out, scan and upload application 
form part B, available as a Word document

• …attach all mandatory annexes (see presentation “Evaluation and 
Award Criteria”)
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Applicant’s checklist (III)

• Proof read your proposal
• Do one last check to ensure that your proposal is clear and easy to follow and 

explain issues, including local context, that may be evident to you
• Evaluators can only assess your proposal on the basis of provided information 

and no assumptions will be made
• Make sure that your proposal is precise, clearly responds to the questions 

asked, and demonstrates the added value of CEF Energy funding

• Make sure that you submit the proposal using the application forms 
and templates provided on the portal – the use of those forms is 
compulsory
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Follow us

cinea.ec.europa

@CINEA_EU CINEATube

CINEA - European Climate, Infrastructure and Environment 
Executive Agency

Or contact us by email at:

CINEA-CEF-ENERGY-CALLS@ec.europa.eu
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https://cinea.ec.europa.eu/index_en
https://twitter.com/cinea_eu
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCDic9AVxO1PP1SqoKbHMwrA/featured
https://www.linkedin.com/company/3034908
mailto:CINEA-CEF-ENERGY-CALLS@ec.europa.eu


Thank you
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